
Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 19 September 2019

Page 1

Agenda
Contact: Steve Culliford
Telephone number 01235 422520
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 11 September 2019
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Scrutiny Committee
will be held on Thursday, 19 September 2019 at 6.30 pm 
Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:

Councillors
Nathan Boyd (Chairman) Andy Foulsham
Jerry Avery 
Ron Batstone
Samantha Bowring
Cheryl Briggs

Mike Pighills
Rob Maddison
Max Thompson

Preferred Substitutes
Paul Barrow Sarah Medley
Eric Batts Patrick O’Leary
Hayleigh Gascoigne
Alison Jenner
Diana Lugova

Janet Shelley
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting.

Margaret Reed
Head of Legal and Democratic 

mailto:steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 19 September 2019

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

1. Apologies for absence 
  
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2. Minutes 
(Pages 4 - 7) 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting held 
on 28 March 2019 (attached).  

3. Declarations of interest 
  
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements 
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5. Public participation 
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.  

REPORTS AND ISSUES FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

6. Local Plan 2031 Part 2 - options for adoption 
(Pages 8 - 64) 
 
To consider the report of the head of planning (attached).

7. Financial outturn 2018/19 
(Pages 65 - 77) 
 
To consider the report of the head of finance (attached).

8. Business and Innovation Strategy Action Plan update 
(Pages 78 - 90) 
 
To consider the report of the head of development and regeneration (attached).



Vale of White Horse District Council
Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 19 September 2019

Page 3

9. 2018/19 Performance report for The Beacon, Wantage 
  
To consider the report of the head of community services (to follow).

10. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 
(Pages 91 - 95) 
 
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are confirmed, the 
items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or rearranged without further 
notice.



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 March 2019 Sc.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 28 March 2019 at 7.00 pm
at The Hanney Room, The Beacon, Wantage 

Open to the public, including the press

Members: Councillors Debby Hallett (Chairman), Chris Palmer (Vice-Chairman), 
Robert Hall, Vicky Jenkins, Sandy Lovatt, Ben Mabbett, Judy Roberts and Simon Howell 
(In place of Mike Badcock)

Officers: 

Adrian Duffield, Ben Duffy, Holly Jones, William Jacobs, Adrianna Partridge and Ron 
Schrieber

Also present: 

Councillors Roger Cox and Robert Sharp

Sc.65 Apologies for absence 

Councillors Mike Badcock, (substituted by Simon Howell), and Matthew Barber, submitted 
apologies.

Sc.66 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2019 were agreed as an accurate record 
and were signed by the Chairman.

Sc.67 Declarations of interest 

None.

Sc.68 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None.

Sc.69 Public participation 

None.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 March 2019 Sc.2

Sc.70 Authority monitoring report 2017/18 

The committee considered the report of the head of planning on the Authority Monitoring 
Report 2017/18, an annual report which set out the council’s progress on Local Plan 
preparation and assessed the effectiveness of the policies and objectives contained in the 
Core Strategy, as well as reporting on a number of other statutory requirements.

Roger Cox, Cabinet member for planning, introduced this item. Also present to answer 
questions were Adrian Duffield, head of planning, Holly Jones, planning policy manager, 
and Ben Duffy, local plan monitoring officer.

In response to members’ questions, it was reported that:

 Consultation on the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 would be ending shortly. All responses 
would then be provided to the Inspector prior to the issuing of his final report. Once 
this has been received it was anticipated that the Local Plan Part 2 would be 
adopted in June 2019.

 Whilst the Council strongly supported and encouraged local communities who 
wished to prepare neighbourhood development plans, there were no targets for the 
number of plans made as this was an entirely voluntary process. 

 58 planning applications had been fast tracked since the adoption of the Milton Park 
Local Development Order.

 The adoption of the Design Guide had assisted the authority in defending appeals 
against the refusal of planning permission.

 Whilst Core Policy 34: A34 Strategy, did not specifically aim to relieve pressure on 
the A34, a consequence of the Oxford to Cambridge Arc could do this – depending 
on its route. 

Members expressed the view that future Authority Monitoring Reports should provide more 
information regarding the effectiveness of the core policies.

RESOLVED: to 

1. note the Authority Monitoring Report 2017/18; and

2. request that, in future, more information be provided on the effectiveness of core 
policies.

Sc.71 Councillor budget task group update 

The committee considered the report of Councillor Chris Palmer, the chairman of the 
Budget Task Group, which provided an update on the task group review of how scrutiny 
members could be more actively involved in the council’s budget setting process.

The committee welcomed the report. A member suggested that more information should 
be provided regarding the Task Group’s membership and dates of meetings.

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 March 2019 Sc.3

With regard to the report’s recommendation that quarterly budget monitoring reports were 
presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny Committee, it was agreed that requested details to be 
included in the committee report should be confirmed by the next chairman of Scrutiny 
Committee to the head of finance.

RESOLVED: to RECOMMEND to Cabinet that:

1. quarterly budget reports are presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny Committee, requested 
details to be included in the committee reports to be confirmed by the chairman of 
Scrutiny to the head of finance.

2. the council’s corporate plan is revised as soon as possible and, following public 
consultation and formal adoption, its priorities should be used to shape future budgets.

Sc.72 Parliamentary report on the effectiveness of local authority 
overview and scrutiny committees 

The committee received a presentation from Adrianna Partridge, deputy chief executive – 
transformation and operations, on the Parliamentary report on the effectiveness of local 
authority overview and scrutiny committees. 

The report called on the Government to revise guidance on scrutiny committees as 
follows:

• That overview and scrutiny committees should report to an authority’s Full Council 
meeting rather than to Cabinet.

• That scrutiny committees and the Cabinet must be distinct.
• That councillors working on scrutiny committees should have access to financial 

and performance data, and this access should not be restricted for reasons of 
commercial sensitivity.

• That scrutiny committees should be supported by officers that are able to operate 
with independence and offer impartial advice to committees.

• That members of the public and service users have a fundamental role in the 
scrutiny process and their participation should be encouraged and facilitated by 
councils.

The report was generally welcomed by members although the view was expressed that it 
failed to recognise the political realities of local government. 

In the light of the report the committee was asked the following questions:

 what improvements did it wish to recommend to improve the council’s ability to 
effectively scrutinise the services provided to residents?; and

 what areas should the councillor induction programme focus on in terms of ensuring 
effective scrutiny moving forward?

The committee agreed that, following the May Council elections, every Scrutiny committee 
member should receive a copy of the Parliamentary report. It was also agreed that the new 
members should identify the actions required to improve the effectiveness of scrutiny.

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 28 March 2019 Sc.4

RESOLVED: to:

1. note the presentation;

2. request that, as part of the councillor induction programme, following the May Council 
elections, all Scrutiny committee members receive a copy of the Parliamentary report; 
and

3. request that, following the May Council elections, Scrutiny members should identify the 
actions required to improve the effectiveness of scrutiny.

The meeting closed at 9.15 pm

Page 7



Scrutiny Committee

REPORT NO:Report of Head of Head of Planning
Author: Nadeem Din
Telephone:07827282029
E-mail: Nadeem.din@southandvale.gov.uk
Executive member responsible: Cllr Catherine Webber
Tel: 01235 534001
E-mail: catherine.webber@southandvale.gov.uk
To:  Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 19 September 2019

Local Plan 2031 Part 2 – options for 
adoption

Recommendations

That Scrutiny Committee is invited to:

(a) note the conclusions of the independent Inspector who was appointed to examine the 
Local Plan 2031 Part 2

(b) note the options in relation to the Local Plan 2031 Part 2, and

(c) recommend to Cabinet to accept the Inspector’s report and recommendation and 
adopt the Local Plan 2031 Part 2.

Purpose of Report

1. To provide Scrutiny Committee with the latest position regarding the Local Plan 2031 
Part 2.

2. To inform, review and consider the implications of any changes to the progress of the 
Local Plan 2031 Part 2.

Corporate Objectives 

3. The Local Plan is central to the achievement of the 2016-2020 Corporate Plan’s 
objectives for:

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 A strong local economy

 Housing for people who need it

Background

4. The Local Plan 2031 Part 1: Strategic Sites and Policies was adopted in December 
2016. Part 1 deals with the larger ‘strategic’ sites and the associated policies. Local 
Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites was submitted for Examination 
on 23 February 2018. Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (LPP2) sets out the strategic policies and 
locations for the agreed quantum of housing to meet Oxford City’s unmet housing need 
within the district. It also contains policies for the part of Didcot Garden Town that lies 
within the district as well as detailed development management policies to complement 
the Local Plan Part 1, replacing the saved policies of the Local Plan 2011, and 
allocating additional development sites for housing and other uses.

5. The Inspector held an Examination which comprised a series of hearing sessions over 
the summer of 2018 and identified a number of proposed Main Modifications to the 
Plan to make it sound. In accordance with the Planning Inspectorate’s Procedural 
Practice, a public consultation on the proposed Main Modifications was undertaken in 
early 2019, closing on 1 April. In preparing LPP2, the Council has undertaken 
consultations in accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and 
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations (2012).

6. Following the conclusion of the Main Modifications consultation, the Council collated 
the 105 representations that it received and sent these to the Inspector for his 
consideration, in accordance with the process. Prior to the Inspector issuing his final 
Report setting out his recommendations, there was a quality assurance check (peer 
review) by the Planning Inspectorate and a fact check of the draft Report by the 
Council, feeding back any fact changes to the Inspector.

7. The Inspector issued his final report to the Council on 25 June 2019 and this has been 
published on the Council website. The report concludes that, with the recommended 
Main Modifications, LPP2 satisfies the requirements of Section 20(5) of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and meets the tests of ‘soundness’ as set out in 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

8. Formal adoption is the final stage in the process of producing a local plan. At this stage 
in the process, government guidance on plan-making is clear on the expectation of the 
Council, noting; 

‘While the local planning authority is not legally required to adopt its local plan following 
examination, it will have been through a significant process locally to engage 
communities and other interests in discussions about the future of the area, and it is to 
be expected that the authority will proceed quickly with adopting a plan that has been 
found sound.’1

1 Paragraph 058 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making

Page 9

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making


Options

9. The choices available to the Council at this stage are restricted to a binary option of 
adopting LPP2 (with the Main Modifications) or not adopting LPP2 (either through 
resolution to withdraw it or by resolution to not adopt). The Council, as a matter of law, 
is not entitled, nor has any power, at this stage in the Local Plan process to make 
material or Main Modifications to the LPP2.

10.Since the option (and therefore any decision) to not adopt LPP2 can be taken in one of 
two ways, it is presented as two separate options in this report. While the grounds for 
both will overlap in many cases, the subtle differences between the two are set out 
under each option.

11.The options, in summary, available are as follows;

Option 1)  Withdraw LPP2

Option 2)  Do not adopt LPP2

Option 3)  Adopt LPP2

12.Under each option, officers have sought to identify the key advantages and risks, as 
well as the timescales for progression of the next plan. Officers have, under each 
option, made a recommendation as to whether to proceed with that option.

OPTION ONE: WITHDRAW LPP2

To withdraw the Local Plan Part 2 at this stage, a sound planning reason(s) and a 
rationale should be provided as a basis for such a decision. While not the case for the 
examination of LPP2, examples of potential planning reasons could include how the 
Inspector failed to follow procedure in relation to LPP2, e.g. not keeping the Council 
informed, not giving opportunities to respond to his queries, modifications which the 
Council did not accept, etc.

13.Withdrawing LPP2 would signify that it was not going to form part of the development 
plan for the Council and so no weight could to be attached to LPP2. Any documents 
associated with LPP2 made available by the council would need to be removed, 
recognising that these documents are already in the public domain and would continue 
to be available from other sources than the council.

OPTION ONE: BENEFITS

14.The withdrawal, and then review/preparation of a new Local Plan will enable 
Councillors of the new administration (May 2019) to establish their key priorities for 
planning in the district. The Council, to act as a place shaper for local communities, 
should set out its long-term vision through a Local Plan. As such it should respond to 
the latest challenges set out by government and reflect the aspirations of the Council. 

With the introduction of the Standard Methodology for calculating housing need, 
starting again by withdrawing LPP2 would provide an opportunity to revisit the housing 
numbers amongst other matters that were identified by the Council. .

Page 10



OPTION ONE: RISKS

15.Where the decision taken is to withdraw LPP2, there would be a period between 
withdrawal and a new Local Plan being in place during which time there would be 
significant implications for planning decisions as set out below.

An uncertain planning environment

16.A risk to this approach is the absence of an up to date Local Plan. The position would 
default to reliance upon the Adopted 2011 Local Plan for Development Management 
policies for decision taking on planning applications. While LPP1 continues to be in 
place, there would however be a policy vacuum left at the local level with the 
withdrawal of LPP2.

Lack of Five-Year Housing Land Supply

17.A further risk is that the withdrawal of LPP2 would leave the Council vulnerable to 
challenges to the lack of a five-year housing supply, and the potential for ad hoc 
development, planning by appeal and associated costs. See Appendix 1 for projections 
of 5-year housing land supply scenarios.

Didcot Garden Town status

18.A decision to withdraw LPP2 might also undermine the Garden Town status for Didcot 
(DGT) should we no longer be able to demonstrate our contribution to the achievement 
of 15,000 homes by 2031. Although no sites relating to DGT are allocated in LPP2, 
annual grant funding, including to support the development plan, could be put at risk.

Potential negative impact on infrastructure

19.The lack of a plan led approach and supporting Infrastructure Delivery Plan may also 
give rise to a lack of planned infrastructure. There is a potential loss of section 106 
contributions necessary for infrastructure including education, highway, healthcare and 
green infrastructure. 

20.The ‘tilted balance’ and NPPF provisions means that benefits of the delivery of housing 
has prime importance in considering applications for residential development and there 
is potential for permission to be granted even if the infrastructure which the Councils 
seeks to secure is not delivered as part of the scheme. 

Government intervention

21.There could be the potential for intervention from government. This intervention would 
seek to instruct the Council to follow a course of action set by the Secretary of State in 
the form of a Direction. 

Neighbourhood Plans

22.There is a risk that Neighbourhood Plans will become non-compliant with the New 
Plan. Additional housing could be brought forward in Neighbourhood Plan Areas which 
was not anticipated since LPP2 sites are no longer allocations.

Page 11



23.Additional work would also be required in relation to neighbourhood plan areas, as the 
NPPF2019 requires, as part of strategic plans, to set out a housing requirement figure 
for neighbourhood areas.

OPTION ONE: TIMETABLE

24.The Council would need to identify the sound planning reason(s) and rationale for 
withdrawal and then notify the Planning Inspectorate of this intention.

25.The Council remains under a duty to prepare and set out a planning framework for the 
whole of our district. As such, if the Council withdraws LPP2, the Council will be 
required to start work on preparing a new Local Plan immediately.

26.An estimated timetable for progressing a new Local Plan is set out below.

OPTION ONE: CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

27.To progress Option 1, the reasons for and against the decision as well as risks of 
withdrawing LPP2 need to be set out clearly as the decision is likely to be challenged 
by interested parties through the High Court.

28. It is not considered that the benefits of this option outweigh the risks and it is not 
recommended to be taken forward.

OPTION TWO: DO NOT ADOPT LPP2

29.Under the 2004 Act, there is no statutory requirement for a local planning authority to 
adopt a Local Plan that has been found ‘sound’. As the Inspector’s final Report has 
been received, it can be considered for adoption by the Council under section 23(5) of 
the 2004 Act. There is no statutory timeframe within which the decision to adopt or 
withdraw a plan must be made, however, the Council cannot delay reaching a decision 
indefinitely.

30.However, under section 21(1)(a) the Secretary of State has the power to intervene and 
issue a holding direction to prevent the Council from doing anything further in relation 

2 Once the Plan is submitted for Examination the timetable for the examination is set by the Inspector and 
may be longer than that indicated

October 2019 Withdraw LPP2

November 2019 – April 2021 Draft Reg 18 Local Plan production

April 2022 Consultation on Reg 19 Local Plan (six 
weeks)

2October 2022 – April 2023 Submission and Examination in Public

June 2023 Inspector’s report

July 2023 Adoption

Page 12



to the Local Plan Part 2 before it is adopted by the Council. Further, under section 
21(4) of the 2004 Act the Secretary of State may require that the plan is submitted to 
him for approval, thus taking the decision out of the Council’s hand. The Secretary of 
State also has powers under section 27(5)(b) to direct the Council to consider adoption 
of the plan.

31.Under this option, the Council can either take an active decision not to adopt LPP2 or 
make no decision on whether or not to adopt LPP2. As per Option 1, sound planning 
reasons and a rationale for not adopting LPP2 will need to be provided.

32.Further, preparation of a new Local Plan will be commenced from the start (Regulation 
18) immediately after the decision is made to not adopt LPP2.

OPTION TWO: BENEFITS

33.The non-adoption of LPP2 and the preparation of a new Local Plan will enable 
Councillors to establish their key priorities for planning in the district. The Council, to 
act as a place shaper for local communities, should set out its long-term vision through 
a Local Plan. As such, the new Local Plan should respond to the latest challenges set 
out by government and reflect the aspirations of the Council. With the introduction of 
the Standard Methodology for calculating housing need, starting again without adopting 
LPP2 would provide an opportunity for the new Local Plan to revisit the housing 
numbers and the underpinning supporting evidence base; that the re-use or 
redevelopment of previously developed land or brownfield land to meet housing needs 
is maximised or to retain land in the Green Belt.

34.The new plan would need to reflect the provisions on the revised NPPF, published 
February 2019. While there will be implications in relation to housing and employment 
land requirements, the revised NPPF places a higher bar on meeting the exceptional 
circumstances for taking land out of the Green Belt.

OPTION TWO: RISKS

Government intervention

35.The Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government has 
substantial powers to intervene to suspend, prepare or otherwise control the plan 
making process.3

36.There is a material risk that if LPP2 is not adopted then the Secretary of State may 
intervene. While historically the powers of intervention have been rarely used, it is now 
understood that intervention is a distinct possibility where the Secretary of State 
considers there to be undue or unexplained delay in the preparation or progress 
towards the adoption of the Local Plan.4

Preparing a new local plan, with the associated time and costs

37.At this stage it is not possible to estimate the financial costs of not adopting LPP2 and 
developing a new plan, but potentially these costs might be substantial. Costs will 
include:

3 Housing and Planning Act 2016 amends provisions of the 2004 Act.
4 The Secretary of State intervened by writing to 15 local authorities for failing to progress their local plans. In 
one case it invited the County Council to lead the preparation of the Local Plan.

Page 13



 Defending potential judicial review

 Costs of appeals – this only becomes an issue if major planning applications 
are appealed against for refusal or non-determination

 Developing a new plan – including staffing resources, costs of studies and 
evidence gathering for a new plan at Regulation 18 stage, additional 
consultation and examination costs. The Council could expect costs to be in 
the region of £3m, based on previous experience.

Legal challenge

38.Aggrieved land owners/developers who may have an interest in bringing forward 
development in conformity with LPP2 may challenge the grounds for the decision 
through judicial review.

39. If a judicial review was successful against the Council, the Court could make a 
Quashing Order resulting in the Council having to make a new decision as the original 
decision to not adopt LPP2 would no longer stand.

OPTION TWO: TIMETABLE

40.The timetable for preparing a new local plan, where the decision taken is to not adopt it 
is similar to the timetable for Option 1, since the starting point would be the same, i.e. 
starting from a Regulation 18 stage.

OPTION TWO: CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

41.Clearly, a decision to not adopt LPP2 would mean the benefits of adopting LPP2 
outlined under Option Three would not be realised.

42. If the Council does not adopt LPP2, it will have to rely on a dated Local Plan and would 
face speculative planning applications, which are difficult to resist. The Council would 
then find it difficult to defend planning appeals, particularly in terms of demonstrating 

5 Once the Plan is submitted for Examination the timetable for the examination is set by the Inspector and 
may be longer than that indicated.

October 2019 Decision to not adopt LPP2

November 2019 – April 
2021

Draft Reg 18 Local Plan production

April 2022 Consultation on Reg 19 Local Plan (six 
weeks)

5October 2022 – April 
2023

Submission and Examination in Public

June 2023 Inspector’s report

July 2023 Adoption

Page 14



that it has a five-year, or three-year housing land supply.6 On current projections this 
would not be possible beyond this current financial year.

43. It is not considered that the benefits of this option outweigh the risks and it is not 
recommended to be taken forward.

OPTION THREE: ADOPT LPP2

44.Once LPP2 is adopted, it will form part of the development plan and carry full weight in 
the determination of planning applications. Adopting LPP2 would also formally replace 
a number of existing Local Plan 2011 Policies.

45.On the basis that LPP2 has undergone significant scrutiny and has been found to be 
sound, a decision to adopt is the logical outcome and there would need to be good 
reasons for not doing so.

OPTION THREE: BENEFITS

46.The following benefits are over and above those set out in the preceding paragraphs. 

Development certainty

47.Having an adopted Local Plan in place provides greater certainty to all interested 
parties, including local communities and businesses, as to where new development will 
take place.  By the same token it gives the Council greater control over where 
development will take place, reducing the prospect for planning by appeal.  Planning 
Appeals take direct control of planning decisions away from the Council due to the fact 
that planning appeals are determined directly by the Planning Inspectorate. Planning 
Appeals can be expensive for Councils in that they require additional in-house and 
external resources together with the fact that the developers may also choose to 
submit an application for costs. This option is likely to be the quickest way of adopting a 
new Local Plan, provides greater control to the Council, provides certainty and 
potentially reduces the number of future speculative planning applications and planning 
appeals.

48.Progressing with LPP2 provides strength and certainty on the requirement for 
neighbourhood plans, allowing them to progress and shape development in their area, 
avoid need for early review and allow them to contribute to the delivery of housing 
need.

Partner support

49.An advantage of this option is that the emerging Local Plan is widely supported by 
adjoining Councils which helps meets the legislative requirement of the Duty to 
Cooperate.  This is set out in a set of Statements of Common Ground included in LPP2 
evidence base.  Having a plan in place addresses questions of the County’s 
development needs as a whole and helps reduce planning risk to our partners. These 
Statements of Common Ground support the evidence that the duty to cooperate has 
been discharged.

6 A freedom granted by the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal allows the authorities to only demonstrate 
a housing land supply for three years while the Oxfordshire Plan is being prepared. 

Page 15



Up to date basis for planning application decision making

50.The NPPF (paragraph 11) states that policies which are most relevant for determining 
planning applications are considered out-of-date for applications involving housing 
where the Council cannot demonstrate:

 A five-year housing land supply, or

 A Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially 
below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement over the past three years.7

51.LPP2, if adopted, would ensure that the Council has a rolling five-year housing land 
supply for the next three years.8 A flexibility and freedom granted to the participating 
authorities in the development of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 is that only a 3-year 
housing supply needs to be demonstrated. In this regard, policies that are most 
important for determining planning applications will not be considered out of date and 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development would not apply. This in turn 
would have the (immediate) effect of:

 Reducing the likelihood of alternative speculative development sites coming 
forward;

 increasing the Council’s ability to refuse and its chances of success in 
defending appeals for inappropriate applications successfully.

52.While this is particularly relevant for housing development, having a local plan with a 
suite of up-to-date development management policies will lead to good, consistent 
decision making. 

Drawdown of secured funding

53.Where the HIF is signed and in place, it enables County Council’s draw down of HIF 
monies, as well as Growth Deal freedoms and flexibilities as set out in the section on 
Other Relevant Factors in this report.

OPTION THREE: RISKS

Policies may not reflect new Council’s priorities

54.  LPP2 was prepared and submitted for examination under the previous Council 
administration to reflect that priorities of that Council and therefore in areas it is not 
reflective of the present Council’s emerging priorities.

Potentially delivering higher number of houses should Oxford unmet need 
change/reduce/increase

55.With Oxford City Council yet to have its exact unmet housing need figure tested, there 
is a risk that in adopting LPP2, provision is made for housing for which the need has 
not been identified. Should the Examination of the Oxford City Plan find the unmet 

7 Transitional arrangements apply whereby in November 2018 and 2019, NPPF para 11 will apply where 
delivery was below 25% and 45% respectively. The threshold of 75% would apply from November 2020.

8 The 5-year housing land supply includes sites which are linked to/dependent upon Housing Infrastructure 
Fund and/or Oxford Growth Deal. If decisions taken external to the Council impact on these in a negative 
way, it could impact on the 5-year housing land supply.

Page 16



need to be lower than the working assumption basis for allocating housing need, the 
allocations in LPP2 may turn out to be not necessary to meet the requirement.

Legal challenge

56. Interested parties aggrieved by the decision to adopt LPP2 may seek to challenge the 
grounds for the decision through judicial review. Further details are set out in 
paragraph 67.

57. If a judicial review was successful against the Council, the Court would make a 
Quashing Order resulting in the Council having to make a new decision as the original 
decision to adopt LPP2 would no longer stand.

 OPTION THREE: TIMETABLE

58. It is a statutory requirement that a plan is reviewed at least every 5 years and should 
be reviewed as necessary to take into account changing circumstances affecting the 
area. As the starting point for the new local plan would be that of a recently adopted 
plan, it is not anticipated that a Regulation 18 stage will be necessary to undertake. 
However, if material changes are proposed and the development of new policies with 
supporting evidence, then a Regulation 18 consultation would be required. The 
timetable for preparing the new plan to include a Regulation 18 stage would be as set 
out under the options for not adopting or withdrawing LPP2. Notwithstanding this, and 
therefore just undertaking a Regulation 19 publication, the timetable for preparing a 
new local plan once LPP2 is adopted is indicated as being shorter, as the new local 
plan would commence from a Regulation 19 stage.

59.The indicative timetable for preparing a new plan under this option is as:

OPTION THREE: CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

60. Adoption of LPP2, which meets the criteria for soundness, would provide the 
Council with the opportunity to focus development in areas that meet the wider 
strategic objectives.

9 Once the Plan is submitted for Examination the timetable for the examination is set by the Inspector and 
may be longer than that indicated

October 2019 Decision to adopt LPP2 (returning to 
Reg 19)

November 2019 – 
November 2020

Draft Reg 19 Local Plan production

Spring 2021 Consultation on Reg 19 Local Plan (six 
weeks)

9 April 2021 Submission and Examination in Public

June 2021 Inspector’s report

July 2021 Adoption

Page 17



61. LPP2 provides a coherent approach to meeting future development needs and 
allocates sites to accommodate sustainable development in the district to 2031. In 
adopting LPP2, the additional sites and detailed policies will become part of the 
Council’s development plan and carry full weight in the determination of planning 
applications.

62. Where the Council resolves to adopt LPP2, a 6-week period will begin to run during 
which any person aggrieved by the decision may bring an application for statutory 
review of the decision in the High Court. Such a challenge can only be brought on 
the basis that there is material error of law in the Council’s decision to adopt LPP2. 
In such circumstances the Council would robustly defend the plan and its validity.

Financial Implications

63.There are no immediate implications flowing from the adoption of the Local Plan 2031 
Part 2.

64.Where the decision taken is to either not adopt the Local Plan 2031 Part 2 or to 
withdraw it, then paragraph 37 of this report identifies some of the potential financial 
implications.

Legal Implications

65.On adoption, the Council must consider all relevant planning applications against the 
policies in the Local Plan 2031 Part 2. It should be noted that, whilst the risk is low, 
there is a short window for a aggrieved party to challenge the decision to adopt LPP2 
once a decision to adopt is taken. Should this occur, officers will communicate with 
Members as appropriate. Looking to the future the Council must review the Local Plan 
within 5 years of adoption. Options for the timing of such a review have been set out 
under each of the options above in this report.

Risks

66.The risks to taking a decision on either of the options are set out under the relevant 
sections of each option.

Other implications

67.The Local Plan 2031 Part 2 will have implications for all sectors of society and all wards 
and parishes of the local authority area. The Sustainability Appraisal systematically 
ensures that all potential implications – based on socio-economic and environmental 
criteria - are taken into account when preparing a Local Plan.

LPP2: Other relevant factors 

Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal (the Deal) 

68. In March 2018, the Council and the other authorities in Oxfordshire signed the 
Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal.  This committed the Councils to delivering 
100,000 new homes across Oxfordshire between 2011 and 2031.  In return, 
Government provided £215m of funding; £150m for infrastructure projects, £60m for 
affordable housing, and £5m for the preparation of an Oxfordshire wide plan to 2050 

Page 18



and the administration of the Deal.  The Deal committed the Oxfordshire authorities to 
submitting their local plans for examination by 1 April 2019.

69.The Deal also provided a three-year housing land supply test for the purposes of 
decision taking while the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 is under preparation.  The Deal also 
introduces a bespoke Housing Delivery Test for Oxfordshire to apply after 2020, in the 
first three years following adoption of the Joint Statutory Spatial Plan. The Housing 
Delivery Test is an annual measurement of housing delivery in each Council area. 
There are consequences, such as a presumption in favour of sustainable development, 
for not meeting the Housing Delivery Test.

Housing and Infrastructure Fund (HIF)

70. In addition to the infrastructure funding received through the Deal, Oxfordshire County 
Council (OCC) has been successful in securing £218 million of funding from the 
Government’s Housing and Infrastructure Fund (HIF).  This will contribute toward 
providing new infrastructure costing £234 million across the Vale of White Horse and 
South Oxfordshire districts.  OCC are finalising an agreement before they will be in 
receipt of any funding from Government. The infrastructure projects that will be 
delivered by HIF are:

 a Didcot Science Bridge on the A4130 – going over the railway line and Didcot 
A Power Station site and join the A4130 Northern Perimeter Road;

 improvements to the A4130 from the Milton Interchange by making it a dual 
carriageway;

 a new river crossing at Culham; and,

 a bypass at Clifton Hampden.

71.These HIF schemes are identified in both district Councils’ emerging Local Plans to 
enable and support delivery of growth across Southern Oxfordshire.  They are 
inextricably linked to some of the committed and planned development in the Didcot 
and Science Vale area. The HIF and the Deal’s transport infrastructure schemes are 
intrinsically interlinked as they form a package of improvements to the Didcot area. 
Both funding streams are essential to a wider highway strategy to deliver growth but to 
also to mitigate the impact of permitted developments. 

72.Oxford’s Local Plan and unmet housing needs

73.Oxford City Council submitted their Local Plan 2016 to 2036 for examination on 22 
March 2019.  Their plan is being examined by the same Inspectors as the South 
Oxfordshire Plan.  Oxford’s plan contains a housing need of 1,400 homes per annum, 
with a capacity-based housing requirement of 8,620 homes.  Their plan is based on the 
rural districts accommodating unmet need, stating that Vale of White Horse district is 
accommodating 2,200 homes.

74.The 2,200 homes figure is based on a Memorandum of Cooperation (Appendix 2), 
prepared by the Oxfordshire Growth Board in September 2016.  The LPP2 has been 
progressed to plan for this unmet housing need and the Inspector concluded that this 
approach was ‘sound.’ This Council has agreed, through a Statement of Common 

Page 19



Ground (Appendix 3), to accommodate 2,200 homes of unmet housing need from 
Oxford City Council.

75.This unmet need from Oxford City would include housing that would contribute towards 
some of the 100,000 houses committed in the Deal. In other words, the unmet need 
from Oxford City is based on the Deal commitments, and not from their “standard 
method” housing need. 

76.On 29 May 2019 and 15 July 2019, the Inspectors for the Oxford City Local Plan 
published a set of questions and comments (Appendix 4 and 4a). These comments are 
directed to the Oxford City Local Plan but could be relevant to consider when making a 
decision on LPP2. Councillors should bear in mind that they do not represent 
conclusions.   They state the following: 

a) Housing calculation: The Inspectors state that the Deal can be used as a 
justification for uplifting housing need.  They recognise that the Deal’s housing 
targets are based on the SHMA 2014.  However, they draw attention to the 
Deal’s delivery plan, which states this must be supported by an appropriate 
update to support plans through an examination (under the new NPPF).  They 
also state that the SHMA figures, on which the Deal is based, are “now quite a 
few years old”.

The Inspectors also highlight some concerns with Oxford City’s Objectively 
Assessed Need Update (2018).  This document attempted to provide a SHMA 
update just for Oxford, to validate the housing figures in the original SHMA, and 
hence the Deal.  They identify that the document could show the housing needs 
of Oxford are falling below the 1,400 homes per annum in their plan.  They state 
this could have a bearing on the level of unmet need for each neighbouring 
authority to accommodate.

b) City’s housing capacity: The Inspectors have asked the City to confirm the 
capacity of Oxford to meet their housing need.  They state the Deal identified a 
capacity of 10,000 homes, yet the plan indicates a capacity of 8,620 homes.  

c) Site capacities:  The Inspectors are critical of Oxford’s assessment of each of 
their proposed sites’ housing capacity (how many homes can be built on each 
site).  

Other matters:  The Inspectors have identified questions regarding: whether the 
plan has been positively prepared; the effectiveness of the plan; affordable 
housing provision; policies making distinctions on the basis of the nature of the 
applicant; car parking; academic facilities and student accommodation; 
employment sites; local employment; and sustainable design and construction.  

Conclusion

77.The process of preparing the Local Plan has been lengthy, costly, and resource 
intensive. Local Plan Part 1 (adopted in 2016) and LPP2 have included substantial 
community and stakeholder engagement in conjunction with their preparation. The 
Inspector has now issued his final report on LPP2, and the examination process in now 
formally complete. 

Page 20



78.The Inspector concludes at paragraph 130 of his report, that with recommended main 
modifications, LPP2 is sound and capable of adoption. It is noteworthy, that LPP2, with 
the Inspector’s main modifications, would largely be consistent with the Council’s 
submission to the Secretary of State. 

79. As outlined in this report, the Council’s options are limited to those set out in this report 
– either adopt LPP” with the Inspector’s modifications or not adopt/withdraw LPP2. A 
decision to adopt would enable LPP2 to become part of the Council’s development 
plan and carry full weight in the determination of planning applications. It will also 
provide a framework for development in the district to ensure that growth is 
sustainable and meets the needs of the existing and future populations. 

Background Papers

1. Vale of White Horse Housing LPP2 Housing Land Supply Note July 2019

Page 21



Vale of White Horse Housing LPP2 Housing Land Supply

Introduction

1. Housing land supply is measured on an ongoing financial year basis and reported on in the Council’s Authority Monitoring 
Report and Five-Year Supply Statement – both of which are published annually. The options put forward for the Vale of 
White Horse Local Plan Part 2 in the covering Report could result in different impacts on Vale of White Horse’s housing land 
supply. 

2. This note sets out the effect these options may have on housing land supply over the Local Plan up until 2026/27, beyond 
2026/27 it becomes difficult to predict housing land supply as there are less than 5 years left in the Local Plan period. This is 
because to calculate 5-year housing land supply you need to have information on the housing requirement and supply for 
the following 5 years. LPP1 and LPP2 allocate the housing requirement and supply up until 2031, but not beyond, therefore 
2026/27 is the last year that we have 5 years’ worth of information. 

3. It is important to note that whilst we can confidently provide the 5-year housing land position for the current year (2019-20), 
future projections should always be treated with caution by their very nature, but they are what we expect to happen. 

4. Currently, under the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal, all districts in Oxfordshire benefit from a three-year housing 
delivery supply, dependent on the production of the Oxfordshire Plan. 

LPP2 housing land supply projections

5. The covering report sets out the options for the Vale of White Horse Local Plan Part 2 (LPP2) as follows;

Option 1)  Withdraw LPP2

Option 2)  Do not adopt LPP2

Option 3)  Adopt LPP2

P
age 22



6. Figure 1 provides the housing land supply projections for Option 1 and Option 3. Projections for Option 1 show that if the plan 
was to be withdrawn the district would be unable to demonstrate a housing land supply from the next financial year, 2020/21. 
Projections for Option 3 show that a positive housing land supply will be maintained until 2021/22, with the district unable to 
demonstrate a five-year housing land supply from 2022/23. 

7. Option 2 will lead to either adoption or non-adoption of the plan. For the purposes of projecting housing land supply, it has 
been assumed that for Option 2 of the plan will result in the same scenario as Option 3 where adopted, whilst non-adoption 
will result in the same scenario as Option 1. 

Figure 1: LPP2 options housing land supply scenarios

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

Option 3 Option 1 5 year target

LPP2 Housing Land Supply Scenarios

P
age 23



Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) and Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal (the Deal) 

8. As is identified in the Cabinet Report the HIF and Deal funding streams are inextricably linked to housing delivery in 
Oxfordshire and the Vale, and if these schemes were not to be delivered as expected it would have a significant impact on 
the district’s housing land supply. 

9. Figure 2 provides the housing land supply projections if sites that are supported by infrastructure funding from either HIF or 
the Deal are removed from the housing trajectory, for both Option 1 and Option 3, and compares this against the current 
projections. This does not include sites related to the schemes that currently have full permission. The sites that have been 
removed from the trajectory have been provided in Appendix A.

Figure 2: HIF and the Deal housing land supply scenarios

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

Option 3 Option 3 with HIF and GD sites removed Option 1 Option 1 with HIF and GD sites removed Target supply

HIF and the Deal housing land supply scenariosP
age 24



9. Options 1 and 3 with the HIF and GD sites removed both show that the Council would currently be unable to demonstrate a 
5 years’ worth of housing land supply, with the positioning weakening to a lesser extent for Option 3 (adoption of LPP2). 

P
age 25



Appendix A- HIF and the Deal sites 

1. The table below provides the sites that have been removed from the projected housing trajectories for the scenarios which 
assume HIF and the Deal are no longer applicable. This does not include all sites that are related to the HIF and the Deal, as 
those sites related to the schemes that have full permission have not been removed. 

2. There are also two sites, Didcot A Power Station and Land North of Appleford Road, that are related to the HIF scheme that 
are not included. This is because we do not have site trajectories currently included in our housing land supply due to a lack 
of information regarding deliverability. 

Housing site
Funding 
scheme Related Infrastructure Planning Status

Year homes 
are expected 

to be 
delivered

A4130 Dual Carriageway to A34
Clifton Hampden Bypass
Culham River Crossing

Valley Park HIF

Science Bridge

Resolution to grant 2021/22

A4130 Dual Carriageway to A34
Clifton Hampden Bypass
Culham River Crossing

North West Valley Park HIF

Science Bridge

Allocation 2024/25

A4130 Dual Carriageway to A34
Clifton Hampden Bypass
Culham River Crossing

East of Sutton Courtenay HIF

Science Bridge

Allocation 2024/25

P
age 26



Crab Hill The Deal Wantage eastern Link road

Parcels of land on the site have full 
permission and are under 

construction. Further phases of 
development require approval. 

2018/19

Monks Farm The Deal Featherbed Lane and Steventon 
Lights

Parcels of land on the site have full 
permission and are under 

construction. Further phases of 
development require approval. 

2020/21

P
age 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Scrutiny Committee Report

Report of Head of Finance
Author: Richard Spraggett
Telephone: 01235 422505
Textphone: 18001 01235 422505
E-mail: richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
Wards affected: All
Cabinet member responsible:  Andrew Crawford 
Tel:   01235 772134
E-mail: Andy.crawford@southandvale.gov.uk
To: Scrutiny Committee
DATE:  19 September 2019

Financial outturn 2018/19

Recommendation

Scrutiny committee is recommended to note the overall outturn position of the 
council as well as the outturn of individual service areas.

Note:  If committee members wish to raise specific questions please send these in 
advance if possible to either the committee clerk or the Senior Finance Business Partner 
(richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk).   Please be aware that if questions are not 
submitted in advance, it may not be possible to answer these in detail at the meeting.  In 
addition, if committee members wish specific heads of service to attend the meeting this 
should also be raised in advance.

Purpose of Report

1. To report the final year end position for revenue and capital expenditure against 
budget for the financial year 2018/19.

Strategic Objectives 

2. The allocation of financial resources within the revenue and capital budgets needs to 
match the objectives agreed by the council.  The outturn report shows how these 
resources have been used in year.  

Background

3. The attached papers contain summarised schedules of revenue and capital 
expenditure for 2018/19; they also present an explanation of the significant variances 
against budget.  This is presented by service.  All the figures in this report are pre-

Page 65

Agenda Item 7

mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk


audit and may be subject to change following the conclusion of the audit of the 
statement of accounts.

Revenue outturn 2018/19

4.  In February 2018 the council approved a net expenditure budget of £15.3 million.  
This increased to £16.4 million as a result of budget carry forwards and 
supplementary estimates.  The net expenditure at year end was £14.2 million – this 
equates to a variation of £2.2 million, which has been transferred to the council’s 
reserves.  This is shown in Table 1 below.

Table 1: summary of revenue budgets and variance

Notes:

a) Finance includes housing benefits and rent allowances funded by government grant 
as shown in table 2 below.

b) The council’s treasury management outturn report will be considered by Joint Audit 
and Governance Committee and cabinet and council.

Table 2: housing benefits and rent allowances

5. Appendix 1 analyses income and expenditure across the service areas.  This 
appendix shows the expenditure budget was £53.4 million compared to an actual 
spend of £48.8 million resulting in an under spend of £4.6 million.  This under spend 
is approximately 8.7 per cent of total expenditure.  The income budget was £38.9 

Page 66



million compared to actual income of £36.5 million, an adverse variance of £2.4 
million or around 6.3 per cent.

6. Appendix 2 compares the outturn position with most recent forecasts.

7. Table 3 below provides a further breakdown of the revenue outturn position.

Table 3: summary of major variances against revenue budget

Budgets carried forward to 2019/20

8.  As shown in table 3, of the £2.2 million variance to budget, over £1.5 million 
represents slippage in one-off budgets that have been agreed as budget carry 
forwards to 2019/20.  These carry forwards are shown in Appendix 3.  They include 
£0.4 million of carry forwards in Development and Regeneration in respect of 
‘Science Vale’ and other regeneration work, £0.3 million in Partnership and Insight for 
accelerated housing and Didcot Garden Town, and £0.5 million in Planning in respect 
of delivering the Local Plan.

9. The Budget carry forwards from 2017/18 included £0.3 million in respect of the Local 
plan, £0.2 million for Didcot garden Town and £150,000 for Science Vale and the 
Growth Board.  These amounts have been carried forward for a second year into 
2019/20.

10.Excluding the carry forwards, direct service expenditure was £0.7 million underspent 
against budget.  Within that net variance, the outturn position has been analysed to 
identify explanations for the significant variations from budget.  Key reasons for 
variances are outlined below, categorised between income and expenditure 
variances and with an indicator showing the service team area as referred to in Table 
3 above.

Page 67



Income variances 

11.Significant income variances include:

Increased income against budget:

 Government grant in respect of homelessness was £259,000 above budget, 
although this will be spent in future years. (Housing & Environment)

 Parking fees were £109,000 higher than budget, and licensing fees were also 
above budget by £43,000. (Housing & Environment)

 Income in respect of Investment properties was around £180,000 above budget 
(Development & Regeneration)

Reduced income against budget:

 Housing benefit government subsidy was £2.720 million below budget, although 
this was broadly compensated by reduced expenditure. (Finance) 

 Development Services fee income (planning fees) and Building Control fees were 
£272,000 and £27,000 respectively below target due to market slowdown, 
particularly on larger developments.  (Planning)

Expenditure variances 

12.Significant expenditure income variances include the following. A number of these 
areas are the subject of the carry forward requests referred to later in this report.

Reduced expenditure against budget:

 Across all services, employee costs were £0.9 million below budget.  This 
underspend includes £0.3 million that has been carried forward to 2019/20. 

 IT costs were £156,000 less than budget primarily due to software underspends 
(Corporate Services)

 Housing Development was £230,000 less than expected due to staff and 
consultancy underspends.  The budget included a £100,000 contribution to the 
‘Oxfordshire Growth Board’. Partnership projects have not yet drawn on this 
funding and the Growth Board itself is now undergoing a review. (Development 
and Regeneration).

 Housing Benefit payments were £2.370 million less than budget. The level of 
these payments is difficult to forecast and the variance is more than offset by 
reduced subsidy income. (Finance)

 Facilities Costs were £97,000 less than budget.  This service was brought back in 
house from ‘Vinci’ on 1 April 2018.  As part of this process, new subcontractors 
had to be selected and contracts tendered, which created expenditure delays.  
The largest underspends being cleaning contracts (£43,000) and repairs and 
maintenance (£27,000) (Development & Regeneration)

Page 68



 Environmental Services spend was £107,000 underspent primarily due to staff 
vacancies (£70,000) and reduced use of services such as the dog warden 
(£27,000). (Housing & Environment)

 Homelessness and housing register expenditure was £141,000 less than budget 
primarily due to reduced temporary accommodation charges (£48,000) and salary 
underspends (£64,000) These underspends were achieved due to proactive 
management of homelessness which led to less families requiring this 
accommodation and reduced hotel costs.  A vacancy for a lettings assistant was 
unfilled creating both a salary saving but also increasing demands on the lettings 
officer (Housing & Environment)

Increased expenditure against budget:

 Elements of the contract with Capita were renegotiated during 2018/19.  Forecast 
potential savings have been revised and the expenditure profile across the 
remaining years of the contract has been changed. Consequently, expenditure 
relating to this contract was £718,000 more than budget . This contrasts with 
2017/18 when the expenditure was £502,000 below budget.  (Partnership & 
Insight) 

Comparison to previous year revenue outturn

13. A comparison of the 2017/18 outturn to the 2018/19 revenue outturn is shown in 
table 4 below:

Table 4: 2017/18 and 2018/19 revenue outturn

 

2017/18 
Total    
£000

2018/19 
Total    
£000

Income (509) 2,425
Expenditure (2,027) (4,656)
Net position before carried forward budgets (2,536) (2,231)
Carried forward budgets 1,095 1,538
Net position after carried forward budgets (1,441) (693)

14.Payments to Capita created the largest overspend (£718,000) in 2018/19.   Housing 
benefit and rent allowance income is difficult to predict and created a net overspend 
of £407,000 in the year, having been close to budget in 2017/18.  

15.Similar to 2017/18, expenditure underspends including carry forward requests are the 
most significant factor in 2018/19. 

Capital 

16.The original capital budget for 2018/19 including growth was agreed in February 2018 
at £14.4 million. In March 2018, a review commenced of a number of the large capital 
schemes.  Details of the changes to the capital programme in year are summarised 
in table 5 below:

Page 69



Table 5: movement on capital programme

 
2018/19

£000
Original capital budget 1 April 2018 14,411
Roll forward from prior years 4,113
Schemes paused (11,049)
Additions in year (externally funded) 1,218
Additions in year (other) 41
Schemes deleted (555)
Slippage into future years (Appendix 4) (4,326)
Working budget 31 March 2019 3,853

17.Capital expenditure for 2018/19 was £2.3 million.  Detail of the variance of spend 
against the capital programme working budget is shown in appendix 4 to this report.

18.During the year, budget holders review their projects and identify those where delays 
mean that the current working budget will not be spent in year.  The budget profile is 
then moved to reflect the new spend profile and budgets are slipped into future years 
if applicable. Slipped budgets remain committed for use in future years.  During the 
year £4.3 million was slipped in this way.  A further £11 million was paused and 
removed from the capital programme.  A list of paused schemes is shown in appendix 
5 and a list of slipped schemes is shown in appendix 6. 

Implications for 2018/19 and future years

19.The 2018/19 revenue outturn position was largely characterised by slippage on major 
development projects resulting in a relatively high level of balances at year end and a 
high level of carry forwards. 

20. The overspend on the Capita contract largely reflects a reprofiling of costs following 
renegotiation of both the contract and the Inter-Authority Agreement between the 
council partners.  This was recognised in the budget published in February 2019 
which also reflected lower savings than originally forecast from the contract.  

21. A budget review and challenge was carried out by the finance department in 
December with the assistance of CIPFA.  This highlighted savings which were 
applied to the 2019/20 budget.  The 2018/19 year end outturn has demonstrated that 
in certain areas further savings may be possible. The budget challenge exercise will 
resume as part of the 2020/21 budget setting and Heads of Service will be asked to 
justify the restatement of underspent budgets.   

22.The capital programme has also been subject to significant slippage into future years, 
again in a similar pattern to previous years.

Financial, legal and any other implications

23.The financial implications are as set out in the body of the report.  There are no other 
implications of this report.

Page 70



Conclusion

24.Following the trends of recent years, the council has underspent on both revenue and 
capital, and the nature and reasons for these variances are detailed within this report 
and the appendices.  

Appendices:

1. Revenue outturn – expenditure and income variance
2. Revenue outturn – major variances
3. Revenue carry forward 2018/19 requests
4. Capital outturn – summary and commentary
5. Capital outturn – paused schemes
6. Capital outturn - slippage 

Background Papers

 Statement of accounts 2018/19 
 Budget papers for 2018/19

Page 71



Vale of White Horse DC variance by income and expenditure 2018/19 Appendix 1

Notes

Service Team

Budget 

£000

Actual   

£000

Variance 

£000

Budget 

£000

Actual   

£000

Variance 

£000

Budget 

£000

Actual   

£000

Variance 

£000

Community Services 1,652 1,422 (230) (1,650) (1,539) 111 2 (117) (119)
Strategic Management 707 301 (406) 0 0 0 707 301 (406)
Corporate Servies 2,636 2,567 (69) (16) (13) 3 2,620 2,554 (66)
Development & Regeneration 2,665 2,052 (613) (1,445) (1,471) (26) 1,220 581 (639)
Finance 26,953 24,932 (2,021) (27,980) (25,293) 2,687 (1,027) (361) 666 (a)
Housing & Environment 9,210 8,761 (449) (3,138) (3,734) (596) 6,072 5,027 (1,045)
Legal & Democratic 1,331 1,251 (80) (268) (298) (30) 1,063 953 (110)
Partnership &  Insight 4,324 4,555 231 (50) (49) 1 4,274 4,506 232
Planning 3,772 2,933 (839) (2,462) (2,187) 275 1,310 746 (564)
Contingency 180 0 (180) 0 0 0 180 0 (180)
Service Expenditure 53,430 48,774 (4,656) (38,948) (36,510) 2,438 16,421 14,190 (2,231)

Investment Income (450) (933) (483) (450) (933) (483) (b)
Net Expenditure 53,430 48,774 (4,656) (39,398) (37,443) 1,955 15,971 13,257 (2,714)

Notes:
a) Finance includes housing benefits and rent allowancesfunded by government grant
b) The councils's treasury management outturn reportwill be considered by joint Audit and Governance

Committee and cabinet and council

Expenditure Income Total

P
age 72



Appendix 2

Vale budget monitoring report as at 31 March 2019

Original Budget Full 

Year                                  
Working Budget                                        Actual Spend                       Current variance

Working Budget Full 

Year                                

Forecast last 

Quarter

Variance between 

outturn and last 

forecast

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Strategic Management Team 707 707 301 (406) 707 707 (406)

Community Services - Revenue (233) 2 (117) (119) 2 (91) (26)

Corporate Services - Revenue 2,498 2,620 2,554 (66) 2,620 2,620 (66)

Development & Regeneration - Revenue 216 1,220 581 (639) 1,220 1,250 (669)

Finance - Revenue (1,027) (1,027) (361) 666 (1,027) (1,027) 666

Housing & Environment Revenue 5,612 6,071 5,026 (1,045) 6,071 6,100 (1,074)

Legal & Democratic - Revenue 1,055 1,063 953 (110) 1,063 1,063 (110)

Partnership and Insight 4,956 4,274 4,506 232 4,274 4,273 233

Planning - Revenue 1,101 1,310 746 (564) 1,310 631 115

Contingency 410 180 0 (180) 180 180 (180)

15,295 16,420 14,189 (2,231) 16,420 15,706 (1,517)

P
age 73



Appendix 3 VALE revenue carry forwards for revenue expenditure 2018-19 - requests

Budget code Carried forward 

from 2017-18

New carry 

forward from 

2018-19

Total 

carried 

forward

Reason carry forward needed

to C/F £

Community Services

4400 SR16 45,000 45,000 This budget is for the continued work on the feasibility and design work for the 
new leisure centre at Wantage/Grove. The project remains paused until the 
government has announced the conclusions of it spending review. This is a 
one-off revenue budget for the project and, therefore, there is no 2019/20 
budget available to fund the project

4703 SD06 10,000 10,000 GO Active Gold one-off scheme

55,000 55,000

Corporate Services

5130 CH14 39000 39,000 IT Manager post (one-off growth) not filled in 2018/19

39,000 39,000

Development and Regeneration

CD11

4055 HP01 50,000 50,000 100,000 Development - Consultation Costs -  Budget made up of one-off growth bid for 
long term project (Oxfordshire Growth Board)

SV11

5130 SV11 62,129 62,129 Science Vale - Budget made up of one-off growth bid for long term project

4055 SV11 44,315 44,315 Science Vale - Marketing - Budget made up of one-off growth bid for long term 
project

4053 SV11 100,000 56,324 156,324 Science Vale - Marketing - Budget made up of one-off growth bid for long term 
project

150,000 212,768 362,768
Legal & Democratic
4304 EL13 32,000 Elections costs are one-off growth bids spanning two financial years.  Carry 

forward reflects actual timings of election preparation expenditure in March and 
April and the need for the balance to be spent in 2019/20

32,000

Housing & Environment

PA42

1001 PA42 200,000 200,000 This is for the new 'Public Realm' team which is a one-off scheme agreed in 
2018/19 for three years.  Officers have not been able to recruit in year and start 
this project during this year.  A supervisor has been recruited to start on 23 
April so the spend is required in 2019/20

4400 PA42 50,000 50,000 This is for the new 'Public Realm' team which is a one-off scheme agreed in 
2018/19 for three years.    A supervisor has been recruited to start on 23 April 
so the spend is required in 2019/21 spend on tools and equipment will 
commence 2019-20

0 250,000 250,000

Partnership & Insight

HP03

1100 HP03 98,087 98,087 Accelerated Housing & Garden Town (one-off growth) - Agency Staff. 

4655 HP03 182,000 1,639 183,639 Accelerated Housing & Garden Town (one-off growth) - Consultants Projects 

4055 EZ01 20,781 20,781

182,000 120,507 302,507

Planning

4660 DP01 288,000 209,000 497,000 Local Plan (one-off growth) - the costs for examination and updated studies 
was not used in 2018/19 and will be required in 2019/20, insufficient budget 
available.

288,000 209,000 497,000

TOTAL TO C/F 620,000 886,275 1,538,275

C:\Users\sav_schrieberr\AppData\Local\Temp\Temp1_VALE_Scrutiny_-_financial_outturn_report.zip\Vale - Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 3

Appendix 6
Page 74



Appendix 4

Vale of White Horse DC 2018/19 capital budget monitoring

Budget Outturn Outturn 

variance
£000 £000 £000

Community Services 1,215 939 (276)
Corporate services 52 7 (45)
Development & Regeneration 0 22 22
Housing & Environment 1,261 972 (289)
Partnership and Insight 68 0 (68)
Preparation Pool 507 364 (143)

3,103 2,304 (799)
Percentage -26%

Capital contingency (unspent) 750
Total working budget 3,853

Explanation of significant variances

Community Services

Development & Regeneration

Housing & Environment

Partnership & Insight

Preparation Pool

Schemes in this pool were paused during the year and subsequently deleted from the capital programme.  
Some spend had been incurred before the projects were paused.  The spend was mainly on repairs to our 
leisure centres.  Projects had completed and the remaining budget was deleted.

Note:  Budget is the full year working budget, Percentage is the total variance excluding contingency as a 
ratio of the budget

Cabinet agreement to transfer £68k to Envionment Agency was given in 2019/20 and therefore the budget 
will be slipped.

There is a long lead time for Disabled Facilities Grants and this has resulted in an underspend of £200k.  
This has been committed and will be reprofiled to 2019/20.

Contractors were appointed late in the year for Faringdon Wetside Changing and therefore the budget of 
£47k anticipated to be spent will be reprofiled to 2019/20

Arts projects were underspent by £96k.  The installations often have a long lead time and therefore  projects 
have slipped into 2019/20.

The overspend of £22k is due to the budget for Refurbishment of Operation Assets being slipped during the 
year to 2019/20.  Spend had not been anticipated in 2018/19.  The 2019/20 budget will be reduced to reflect 
this overspend.

C:\Users\sav_schrieberr\AppData\Local\Temp\Temp1_VALE_Scrutiny_-_financial_outturn_report.zip\Vale - 

Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 4
Page 75



Appendix 5

Vale of White Horse DC schemes paused during 2019/18

Community Services £000

Wantage/Grove Leisure Centre 7,714
Leisure Centre Essential Works 619
Community Grants 18/19 100

8,433

Development & Regeneration £000

Broadband 20
New Gas Boiler 17

37

Housing & Environment £000

Replacement CCTV 49

Sewage Works 264

Housing Association Programme 387

Housing Allocations 7

Housing Abingdon 885

Elmside Hostel 12

Licensing Software 3

Flood Prevention 45

Car Park Signs 12

Renovation of Charter CP 765

Improvements to Charter WC 150

2,579

Total 11,049

Page 76



Appendix 6

Vale of White Horse DC slippage of capital schemes from 2018/19 to later years

Community Services £000

Wantage Leisure Centre Capital Investment 83
Public Art Chiltern 72
Community Grants 18/19 0
Fitness Extension White Horse Leisure Centre 97
Farringdon Leisure Centre Pitch 824
Gym Equipment Faringdon 16
Faringdon Wetside Changing 130

Abbey Meadows 63
1,285

Development & Regeneration £000

Essential Refurbishment of Operational Assets 121
121

Housing & Environment £000

Car Park Lighting 50

Changes to Rye Farm CP 45

Rye Farm resurfacing 40

Disabled Facilities Grants 2,015

Home Repairs Target 20

2,170

Partnership & Insight £000

Abingdon Flood 750
750

Total 4,326

Page 77



Scrutiny Committee

Report of Head of Development and Regeneration
Author: Melanie Smans
Telephone: 01235422201
Textphone: 018001 01235422201
E-mail: melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
Executive member responsible: Cllr Bethia Thomas
Tel: 07906 821680

E-mail: Bethia.Thomas@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 19 September 2019

Business and Innovation Strategy 
Action Plan Update

Recommendation

1. The committee is invited to:

 comment upon the delivery to 31 March 2019 of the Business and Innovation 
Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020.

 make recommendations in respect of the delivery and monitoring of outlined 
key initiatives for 2019/2020.

Purpose of Report

1. To provide an update on the delivery of the Business and Innovation Strategy 
Action Plan 2017 to 2020.

Strategic Objectives 

2. The Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate Plan 2016-2020 includes the 
strategic objectives to, “create the right conditions for economic growth, so that 
businesses, residents and workers can prosper”, “optimise employment 
opportunities”,” support tourism in Vale”, and “ensure the success of our town 
centres”.

Background

3. In 2015 the councils recognised the need to build stronger relationships with local 
businesses and support their growth. To achieve this, there was a need for the 
councils to gain a better understanding of the districts' small and medium 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



enterprises (SMEs) and their priorities. Lichfields were appointed to prepare a 
Business and Innovation Strategy (BIS) which provides an analysis of the SMEs in 
the district and recommends a series of practical steps to maximise the impact of 
the councils’ business support interventions from 2016 to 2020.

4. In February 2017, cabinet members received a presentation on the findings of the 
BIS and recommended actions. The economic development team used the 
recommendations to develop the BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020. The action 
plan demonstrates how the council supports all business in the district.

5. The development and delivery of the BIS and action plan was funded from a 
growth bid within the economic development budget, so no formal approval was 
determined necessary in relation to production of the strategy or action plan.

6. The SME BIS Final Report (March 2017) identifies the vital role that SMEs play in 
the economy and the need refocus the council’s activity on providing support to the 
5,740 SMEs in the district. In the Vale, most businesses employ less than nine 
employees and only three per cent of businesses employ more than 50 
employees. These figures are roughly the same in March 2019 (see appendix A).

7. For this reason, the report highlights the pivotal role the council and partners play 
in helping the zero, micro and small businesses in the district to overcome four key 
barriers to growth: 

 business support
 skills and labour force
 infrastructure and planning
 business space.

8. The BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020 outlines how the council, via the economic 
development team, will remove the key barriers and support business growth. 

9. The discussion below reports on the delivery of the BIS Action Plan as at 31 March 
2019 and plans for 2019/2020.

Page 79



Progress of BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020

10.Of the 20 actions, 12 are on track or completed. Use of the customer relationship 
management system (CRM) has allowed the team to better track and record 
business engagement, and the amount of time spent on each business. The 
actions related to the skills agenda will be progressed over the next year as the 
team is better resourced to create the necessary links and deliver strong outcomes 
for local businesses, residents and the council.

Page 80



Key Successes

11.Over the last year, there have been many successes that have positively impacted 
local businesses and increase awareness of the council’s support for business. 
These include:

 Leading and supporting the Larkmead Young Enterprise team. The school was 
the South and Vale District runner-up and the only state school in the 
Oxfordshire final. The team was the winner of the Oxfordshire Sustainability 
Award and Student Journey Award.

 Faringdon Popup Business School saw 30 new businesses start and deliver 
£34 return for every £1 invested by the Vale.

 as at 1 June 2019, 97.33 per cent of the district had access to superfast 
broadband.

 In 2018/2019, 22 new enquiries about available business space in the district 
were received.

 56 applications were received for the South and Vale Business Awards. The 
awards increased awareness of the council’s support for businesses with 20 
external articles, 17,023 website visits and a newsletter open rate of 50.46 per 
cent (industry average is 20.77 per cent) during the five-month award 
programme.

 due to the strengthened relationship with OxLEP and the inward investment 
team, the team has been invited to support the Department of International 
Trade (DIT) and is actively leading the engagement of two foreign businesses 
in the district. 

 in 2018/2019, 150 new businesses sought support from the team including 
Rebellion Film Studio and Hachette/Bookpoint.

 leading the implementation and monitoring of Community Employment Plans 
for the Crab Hill (Wantage) and North Abingdon developments.

 increasing the strategic focus of the team, the economic development manager 
represented the council on the Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy Steering 
Group and the Oxfordshire Digital Infrastructure Programme Management 
Board. The team is leading the support package for businesses and residents 
affected by the Swindon Honda closure and uncertainty of Brexit.

12.  The remainder of the paper outlines the delivery of the actions under the four 
action plan themes of business support, skills and labour force, infrastructure and 
planning, and business space.

Business Support

13.A key finding of the BIS Final Report (March 2017) was the lack of general 
awareness of available business support. A recommendation was to use social 
media to increase awareness of the Vale4Business brand and signpost available 
support. The Vale4Business brand was relaunched in 2017. Internal and external 
feedback in 2017/2018 was that there was much duplication between the 
Vale4Business and SOBusiness (South Oxfordshire District Council brand) brands 
and confusion about the team’s identity. To reduce duplication, save finances and 
increase brand clarity, in 2018/2019 work began to combine both brands and 
launch ‘South and Vale Business Support’. 

Page 81



14.A key success of 2018/2019 was the relaunch of the co-branded ‘South and Vale 
Business Support’ newsletter. Following feedback, the format was changed to 
highlight news and upcoming events as these are the most requested. The new 
format saw the open rate increase from 35.4 per cent to 46.0 per cent. The 
industry average is 20.77 per cent. 

15.The economic development team manages four social media accounts:

 South and Vale Business Support website, Twitter, LinkedIn and newsletter
 Science Vale website. Twitter, LinkedIn, Facebook and newsletter
 Love Wantage Twitter, Facebook and website
 Visit Southern Oxfordshire Twitter and website

16.Across these platforms, the team directly engages approximately 15 per cent of the 
businesses located in the Vale. This number is steady as the introduction of GDPR 
legislation in May 2018 required to team to cleanse and rebuild the contact 
database within the Tractivity customer relationship management system.

South and Vale Business Awards
17.Following the success of the Vale4Business Awards in 2018, the inaugural South 

and Vale Business Awards (SVBAs) were held in 2019. Based on lessons learnt, 
best practice and advice from the organisers of the West Oxfordshire Business 
Awards (WOBAs), Oxford Business Awards (OBAs) and Cherwell Business 
Awards, it was decided that businesses would be celebrated in nine award 
categories. Applications opened October 2018 at a launch event attended by 90 
business leaders. There were 52 applications received by the closing date in 
January 2019. 

18.The awards ceremony was held on 15 March 2019 at the Williams Conference 
Centre. The evening was a fantastic opportunity to showcase the best of the Vale 
businesses and provided networking opportunities for the 180 attendees. The 
Business and Innovation magazine was the ceremony media partner and provided 
national promotion of the awards and finalists. The winners have featured in 
Vale4Business and district council communications.

19.Corporate sponsorship was secured for each award and key support functions 
(photography, media, design and printing). The sponsors actively engaged with the 

Page 82



award programme: judging and visiting finalists, promoting the awards, and 
promoting the team’s services. Through this process, the team has strengthened 
relationships with the sponsors who are now key advocates for the work of the 
team and support available for businesses. Due to their positive experience, 
sponsors have already committed to supporting the 2019/2020 awards. Due to the 
level of sponsorship secured, the awards programme did not use any council 
funds, only officer time.

20.The awards programme has been a wonderful platform to increase engagement 
with businesses throughout the district and awareness of the support available. 
Throughout the awards programme there were:

 255,523 impressions across social media platforms
 1,421 Twitter profile visits
 17,023 visits to the website
 20 external articles written about the SVBAs.

Business database and engagement
21.A key action of the BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020 is to improve and monitor 

business engagement through use of a customer relationship management system 
and a business database.

22. In August 2017, the team procured a subscription to Tractivity, an online CRM. 
Tractivity is a market leader and offers a fully tailored, economic development-
specific CRM that is used by public economic development teams across the UK 
and Europe. The Tractivity CRM has been designed and proven to support local 
authorities to improve business intelligence, enquiry handling, and e-
communications: all key actions from the BIS. 

23.The Tractivity CRM integrates with the MINT database which is used to find out 
information and contact details about businesses – what they do, who runs them, 
how successful they are and their structure. MINT also has the function to keep the 
team's data up to date. Together, Tractivity and MINT will provide reports on the 
number of business births each quarter, the increase in the district’s GDP, the 
number and type of new businesses in the area, and ownership details of 
businesses. For example, in 2018/2019 there were 716 new businesses 
incorporated in the Vale.

24.Tractivity allows the team to record ‘business engagement’ – the number of times 
the team has interacted with a business. In 2018/2019, the team engaged over 150 
new businesses across South and Vale. These businesses sought several types of 
support including finding premises, general business advice, planning support, and 
signposting other support services.

25.Due to the strengthened relationship with OxLEP and Department of International 
Trade (DIT), the team has been invited to support the account management of 
foreign owned businesses and inward investment enquiries. The team is currently 
actively leading the engagement of two foreign businesses in the district. 

Economic Development Lead – Vale Towns
26.The Economic Development Lead - Vale Towns post was created following a 

2017/2018 review of the market town coordinator initiative. In consultation with the 
Page 83



Faringdon and Wantage town councils, it was agreed that model did not represent 
a cost or resource effective model of market town support. The economic 
development team was unable to continue to provide the necessary support to the 
wider SME community (as recommended by the BIS) as well as deliver tailored 
support to the market towns. The Economic Development Lead – Vale Towns is 
funded for two years to take a district level approach to increasing footfall in all 
Vale towns. This is being achieved by focusing on increasing the visitor economy.

27.The key successes of the post since it was filled in January 2019 include:

 relaunching the ‘Visit the Vale of White Horse District’ leaflet in English and 
French.

 partnering with Experience Oxfordshire to promote the district nationally and 
internationally.

 working with Salters Steamers to deliver more boat rides from Oxford to 
Abingdon.

 partnering with Abingdon Chamber of Commerce to design and distribute a 
town map of all town centre businesses.

 working with Grove Parish Council to develop a ‘welcome to the district’ pack 
for new residents to promote local businesses and services. 

 creating a Vale Tourism Forum for local stakeholders to discuss coordinated 
promotion of events and the towns.

Skills and Labour Force

28.A key focus for them team has been to address the skills agenda: help businesses 
attract and retain staff and increase resident’s awareness of local job opportunities. 
For example, in 2018/2019, the largest number of jobs were created in the digital 
sector and the highest number of vacancies were for human resources and 
industrial relations officers, programmers and software developers, and teachers 
(see appendix A). To address the skills agenda, an economic development lead 
that specialises in skills has been recruited. 

29.A key success in 2018/2019 was the Young Enterprise initiative. The team was 
invited to be the Young Enterprise advisors for Larkmead School. It involved 
supporting students every week for nine months to start a grow a business. Due to 
the great support from the economic development team, the school was the South 
and Vale District runner-up and was the only state school in the Oxfordshire Final. 
The school was the winner of the Oxfordshire Sustainability award and Best 
Student Journey aware.

Popup Business School
30.The Popup Business School is a start-up training course that teaches people how 

to start a business with no money. The district council funded and held a Popup 
Business School at the Pump House, Faringdon from 4 – 8 February 2019. The 
total cost of the school was £13,000. The school was supported by the Faringdon 
Chamber of Commerce (£2,000 contribution) and Faringdon Town Council (£450 
contribution in the form of free room hire).

31.The key outcomes of the week-long event are:

Page 84



a. 56 people attended each day. Of these 41 per cent were unemployed and 
30 per cent were self-employed. These people and the presenters 
contributed to the local economy each day by frequenting local shops.

b. By the end of the week 33 per cent of attendees had started trading and 63 
per cent were almost ready. Businesses created include crochet heirloom 
blankets, a life-coaching programme, handmade sofas, craft workshops, a 
food experience consultancy and a pop-up museum consultant. 

c. By the end of the week 30 per cent had made a sale.

d. The event was attended and covered by BBC Oxford who interviewed the 
owner of a salon in Faringdon. 

e. The event resulted in £34 return for every £1 invested in the event.

f. Attendees came from across the country Faringdon, Swindon, Reading, 
Chipping Norton, Witney, Watlington, Henley-on-Thames.

g. Overall awareness of Faringdon increased with 4,544 people viewing 
advertising on social media which was shown 14,631 times in the month 
leading up to the event. 

h. Feedback from participants included:

32. “This course is immensely valuable to people like me. By paying for us to 
succeed, you have sent me the message that I would like to find business in 
and around Faringdon”.

33. “You have changed my view of the impact my local council can have on 
unemployment and individual happiness. The local community will benefit 
from the changes that have been made this week in people’s view of what 
they can do.”

34.A second school was held in Berinsfield 29 April – 3 May 2019. Many people 
attended as they were unable to attend the Faringdon event or had heard positive 
feedback from people who did attend. 

35.To support residents and businesses impacted by the Honda closure, a second 
school will be held in Shrivenham 7 – 11 October 2019. It will be free to attend with 
promotion commencing in the summer.

Community Employment Plans
36. In 2017 the Oxfordshire Growth Board endorsed OxLEP’s proposal to work with 

developers to create Community Employment Plans (CEPs) which outline a 
commitment to provide employment and training opportunities and use local 
suppliers during the life of the construction phase.

37.The Vale Draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites 
includes Development Policy 10: Community Employment Plans (CEPs). It 
highlights that 

“All new developments should consider how they can create opportunities for 
local employment and the development of local skills and expertise, including 

Page 85



through apprenticeships. They should also seek to maximise opportunities for 
sourcing suppliers and services locally during construction.”

38.The economic development team is responsible for creating, managing and 
delivering CEPs. The current CEPs are:

 St Modwen Crab Hill/King’s Grove development (Wantage)
 North Abingdon development – land north of Dunmore Road and Twelve 

Acre Drive
 Botley West Way redevelopment.

St Mowden has proactively engaged the community and schools by hosting site 
visits, attending careers fairs and supporting volunteering groups. Events are 
planned for 2019 include ‘Meet the Buyer’ sessions where local businesses can 
learn about opportunities to win contracts with the developers.

Infrastructure and Planning

39.The team is invited to comment on relevant planning applications including 
proposals for mixed-use on employment sites, creation of visitor accommodation 
and loss of employment land. In 2018/2019 the team provided formal comments on 
22 applications. This is a slight decrease from 2017/2018 as the number of 
applications regarding employment sites has decreased.

Broadband coverage
40.75 per cent of respondents to the BIS research cited access to high speed 

broadband as very important or important. The council is part of the Better 
Broadband for Oxfordshire project. There have been two phases to this project to 
date.  The first phase was a £25 million investment funded by Oxfordshire County 
Council, the government and BT. The second phase saw investment of £10.68 
million made up of funding from the district councils, Oxfordshire County Council, 
BT, OxLEP, SEMLEP and government match funding.  This included a contribution 
of £250,000 from Vale Council which was matched by government. It also included 
prioritisation for the key business parks in the Vale and the delivery of superfast 
broadband to 4,498 Vale premises.

41.The team represents the council on the Better Broadband for Oxfordshire project 
board. As at 1 June 2019, more than 97 per cent of the district had access to 
superfast broadband. The remaining three per cent is expected to be delivered by 
the central government. 

Page 86



Source: https://labs.thinkbroadband.com/local/uk

42.Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) has secured a DEFRA grant to deliver the 
Broadband for Rural Businesses in Oxfordshire (BIRO) programme. It will result in 
ultrafast broadband delivered to 282 Vale business premises and 213 residential 
premises. It will be completed by September 2020. This will be achieved at no 
additional cost to the Vale

43.  The team is a member of the Oxfordshire Digital Infrastructure Programme 
Management Board which aims to progress the delivery of superfast and 5G 
infrastructure throughout the county. A MOU is being developed for delivery 
partners to be aware of individual operational responsibilities required to facilitate 
delivery of digital infrastructure in Oxfordshire.

 Business Space

44. In 2018/2019, the team recorded 22 new enquiries about business space. 
Successes for 2018/2019 include: 

 Supporting more than 10 businesses to find new premises in the Vale. For 
example, Montala, a recipient of the Royal Warrant of Appointment to Her 
Majesty the Queen, is a rapidly growing IT company based in Faringdon. The 
owner sought the team’s support when he was unable to find an appropriate 
site within the Faringdon area. If a site was not found, Montala would look to 
move to Swindon. The team worked with agents and the owner to identify a 
suitable site in Shrivenham. Montala relocated to Shrivenham in May. Due to 
the team’s help, 30 local jobs were safeguarded and there will be more created 
over the next 18 months. 

 In Abingdon, team worked closely with estate agents, businesses and the 
council’s planning department to bring a wine bar and restaurant to two long 
term vacant units on the High Street. This will have a great positive impact on 
the night time economy and encourage more businesses to the Hight Street.

Page 87

https://labs.thinkbroadband.com/local/uk


 Supporting Rebellion with their move to the new premises and providing advice 
on planning, skills, and local supply chains.

45.The team has monthly meetings with local developers and agents to discuss 
current and upcoming sites as well as trends. For example, over the last two years, 
there have been very few sites for freehold purchase with most properties offered 
for lease. This is a barrier for businesses who wish to safeguard their future and 
purchase land. Over the previous months, there has been much anecdotal 
evidence that businesses are less inclined to enter long-term leases due to the 
uncertainty of Brexit.

46.Most businesses are seeking between 3,000-10,000 square feet of office space. 
The spaces that are available are viewed as unaffordable or not value for money. 
Expanding market town businesses wish to remain in the town and will not 
consider moving to a neighbouring town. The primary reason is that the workforce 
will not travel e.g. from Wantage to Faringdon or Faringdon to Abingdon. The 
commitment to remaining in the town is commendable but represents a barrier to 
growth when larger businesses spaces are unavailable. 

Financial Implications

47.  The delivery of the BIS Action Plan 2017 to 2020 is funded through the standing 
economic development budget.

48.The economic development team has secured £7,500 for 2019/2020 from central 
government Brexit Impact Support funding provided to the Vale.

Legal Implications

49.There are no legal implications associated with the delivery of the BIS Action Plan 
2017 to 2020.

Risks

50.There are no legal, political, financial or social risks associated with the delivery of 
the BIS Action Plan.

51.The protracted uncertainty of the Brexit decision and process is negatively 
impacting Vale businesses and towns. The short, medium and long term impact of 
the uncertainty is unknown.

Other Implications

52.The Science Vale marketing role is now part of the economic development team. 
This provides a terrific opportunity to continue the joint approach to promoting the 
entire Vale economy and the local innovative ecosystem.

Conclusion

53.9. The economic development team has worked hard to continue to deliver BIS 
Action Plan 2017 to 2020 and positive outcomes for local small businesses. All 
team vacancies have been filled and is now resourced to address four key areas of 
focus for 2019/2020:

Page 88



a. foster partnership working with businesses, schools and training providers 
to increase awareness of local careers, apprenticeships and vacancies.

b. provide targeted support for businesses impacted by the uncertainty of 
Brexit and the Swindon Honda Closure.

c. boost the visitor economy to increase market town footfall
d. identify and explore opportunities to generate income for the council   

54.Key initiatives for 2019/2020 include:

a. Deliver an intervention support package for businesses and residents 
impacted by Honda closure:

i. Networking breakfast with Swindon Borough Council - June 2019
ii. Popup Business School in Shrivenham – October 2019
iii. Jobs fair – March 2019
iv. Drop-in events in Watchfield, Shrivenham and Faringdon as needed

b. Deliver an intervention support package for businesses impacted by the 
uncertainty of Brexit. This includes holding workshops and bolstering the 
visitor economy. Launch the Duke of York iDEA digital skills programme

c. Support the promotion of business space at Grove Business Park and 
Shrivenham 100.

d. Deliver the South and Vale Business Awards in May 2020.
e. Support the Local Development Order review for Milton Park and the 

exploration of an Article 4 direction to safeguard employment space on 
business parks

f. Support market towns and the tourism sector by fostering the visitor 
economy. 

g. Partner with Oxfordshire councils to ratify and deliver the Oxfordshire Digital 
Infrastructure Delivery Strategy and Partnership.

h. Partnering with OxLEP, Oxfordshire Councils, business leaders to 
implement the Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy projects, ensuring 
maximum benefits for Vale businesses.

i.    Work with Rebellion Film Studios to foster and grow the creative industry 
and supply chain.

j.   Identify and explore income generation streams for the council from 
economic development initiatives. 

55.There is increasing demand from micro and small businesses for flexible working 
space. Over the last six months the team has been approached by businesses, 
developers and growth hubs in other districts to explore the appetite for the Vale 
Council to fund and operate a growth hub/innovation centre. This has the 
possibility to generate income for the council as well as provide much needed 
space. A detailed feasibility study would be required if the council wished to pursue 
income generation streams.

Background Papers

 Nil

Page 89



Appendix A – Vale of White Horse Economic Ecosystem

 total businesses in the district – 1 April 2019

Town Number of 
Businesses

% of 
Businesses in 

the Vale

New 
Businesses 

in March 
2019

Growth/Decline

Abingdon 1932 23% 16 0.8%

Wantage 650 8% 8 1.2%

Faringdon 483 6% 5 1.0%

Botley (Hinksey) 338 4% 2 0.6%

Grove 295 4% 2 0.7%

Other 4612 55% 40 0.9%

Total 8310 100% 73 5.2%

 From 2012 to 2017, 7,400 jobs were created in the Vale. The top three sectors for job 
creation were:

· Digital – 1,530 jobs
· Education and childcare – 1,200 jobs
· Education and knowledge creation – 1,200 jobs

 The greatest growing demand is for:
· human resources and industrial relation officers
· programmers and software developers
· biological scientists and biochemists
· secondary education teachers
· IT specialist managers

Page 90



Schedule for Scrutiny Committees 2019/20

(further items to be added to schedule as required)

Meeting date Council Agenda items Purpose of Report Cabinet Members Lead 
Officer

Head of 
Service

Tues 1 Oct South Emerging Local Plan Report back 
following Council 
resolution

Leigh Rawlins Holly Jones Adrian 
Duffield

Tues 26 Nov South Delivery of Affordable Housing

Air Quality

Planning enforcement annual 
review 2018/19

Progress report

Update report on 
Defra report and 
feedback received. 
 Review of AQMA's 
across the district 
and grant funding. 

Annual review

Robin Bennett

David Rouane

Leigh Rawlins

Jayne 
Bolton

Emma 
Turner

Suzanne 
Malcolm

Liz Hayden

Adrian 
Duffield

Thurs 28 Nov Vale Delivery of Affordable Housing

Planning enforcement annual 
review 2018/19

Progress report

Annual review

Bethia Thomas

Catherine Webber

Jayne 
Bolton

Emma 
Turner

Suzanne 
Malcolm

Adrian 
Duffield

Tues 3 Dec Joint Homelessness and Rough 
Sleeping Strategy

To comment on 
the new strategy

David Rouane/Ruth 
Molyneaux

Phil Ealey Liz Hayden

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 10



Didcot Garden Town

Proposed Fees & Charges 20/21

To consider 
governance 
arrangements, 
priorities and 
funding allocations

To consider 
proposals

Sue Cooper/Judy Roberts

David Turner/Andy 
Crawford

Marybeth 
Harasz

Richard 
Spragget

Andrew 
Down

William 
Jacobs

Tues 21 Jan 
2020

South Authority Monitoring Report 
2018/19

Planning appeal annual review 
2018/19

Annual Review

Annual Review

Leigh Rawlins

Leigh Rawlins

Ben Duffy

Tracy Smith

Adrian 
Duffield

Adrian 
Duffield

Thurs 23 Jan Vale Authority Monitoring Report 
2018/19

Planning appeal annual review 
2018/19

Annual Review

Annual Review

Catherine Webber

Catherine Webber

Ben Duffy

Tracy Smith

Adrian 
Duffield

Adrian 
Duffield

Tues 4 Feb South Review of Final Draft Budget

CIL Spending Strategy

To make 
recommendations 
to Council

To consider the 
strategy’s 
implementation

David Turner

Robin Bennett 

William 
Jacobs

Jayne 
Bolton

William 
Jacobs

Suzanne 
Malcolm

Thurs 6 Feb Vale Review of Final Draft Budget To make 
recommendations 
to Council

Andy Crawford William 
Jacobs

William 
Jacobs

P
age 92



CIL Spending Strategy To consider the 
strategy’s 
implementation

Bethia Thomas Jayne 
Bolton

Suzanne 
Malcolm

Tues 3 March Joint Corporate Delivery Framework – 
Performance Management

Andrea Powell/Debby 
Hallett

Michelle 
Wells/Ben 
Coleman

Adrianna 
Partridge

Tues 24 
March

South

Thurs 26 
March

Vale

P
age 93



Items for future meetings (date to be determined)

Joint
 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Reg18 Part 2 – Planning
 Civil Parking Enforcement - Housing & Environment
 HMOs – implementation of legislation - Housing & Environment
 Unlawful Encampments - Housing & Environment
 Inter-authority Agreement – Legal & Democratic/Corporate Services

South
 Regular Budget Monitoring – Finance
 Strategic Property Review – Development & Regeneration
 New Office Accommodation – Corporate Services
 Corporate Plan - Corporate Services
 Delivery of Crematorium, Graveyard or alternative provision over the next 20 years within the District - Development & Regeneration

Vale
 Regular Budget Monitoring – Finance
 Strategic Property Review – Development & Regeneration
 Charter Centre redevelopment – Development & Regeneration
 Corporate Plan - Corporate Services

The Cabinet work programmes can be accessed via the following links:
South
http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0
Vale
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0

P
age 94

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=121&RD=0
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=507&RD=0


Meeting Start times: Joint: 6:30; South: 6:30; Vale: 6.30;

Scrutiny Work Item Preparation
Members are invited to consider the following headings for future agenda items
Item name
Date of report to Committee 
What do we want to know about? What topics should the report provider include in their report to 
Scrutiny?
Who to invite to Committee? (Cabinet member(s) and Head(s) of Service). Anyone from outside 
agencies? 

P
age 95


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Local Plan 2031 Part 2 - options for adoption
	2019-07-30 Vale of White Horse Housing Land Supply Note Final Appendix 1
	Oxfordshire_Growth_Board___Signed_Memorandum_of_Cooperation Appendix 2
	Oxford City SOCG Appendix 3
	Oxford questions and comments 29 May set 1 Appendix 4
	Oxford questions and comments 15 July set 2 Appendix 4a

	7 Financial outturn 2018/19
	Vale - Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 1
	Vale - Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 2
	Vale - Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 3
	Vale - Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 4
	Vale - Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 5
	Vale - Scrutiny Outturn Appendix 6

	8 Business and Innovation Strategy Action Plan update
	10 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings

